
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3.   Approval of Minutes:  
  A. June 13, 2013 General Meeting Minutes 
  B. June 14, 2013 Special Meeting Minutes 
4.   Mayor's Request for Agenda Changes: 
5.  Committee Reports:   
  A.  Library 
  B.  Road 
6. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
7.   Consent Agenda:  

A. FY14-01NCO Amendment of DRC Budget for Office  
 Project – Publish 
A. FY14-02NCO Amendment of Library Budget for PLA 

Change - Publish 
B. Extend a Contract for FY14 to Corvid Computing to 

Serve as GCN System Manager 
 

8. Ordinance for Public Hearing:  
A. FY13-20 Adopting a Major Revision for Title 8 — Marine

 Facilities w/ June 13th, 2013 Amendments 
B. FY13-21 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Providing 

for the Amendment of City Ordinance 4.01.010 City  
     Obligations 
 

9. Unfinished business: 
A. Resolution 2013-18 A Resolution Establishing Gustavus 

Harbor Facilities' Offenses Fines 
 

10. New Business:  
A. Extension of RMFY13 Road Maintenance Contract 

 
11. Staff Reports:  
12. City Council Reports 
       A. Mayor’s report 
       B. City Clerk report 
13. City Council Questions and Comments 
14. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items 
15. Executive Session 
16. Adjournment 
  
  

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
GENERAL MEETING 
JULY 11,  2013 -  THURSDAY 
7:00PM @ CITY HALL 

 
 
Lou Cacioppo 

Mayor 
lou.cacioppo@gustavus-ak.gov 

Mayor Term Expires 2013 
Council Seat Term Expires 2013 

 
Noël Farevaag 

Vice Mayor 
noel.farevaag@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2014 

 
Morgan DeBoer 

Council Member  
morgan.deboer@gustavus-ak.gov 

Appointed Until October 2013 
Term Expires October 2013 

 
Phil Hawley 

Council Member 
phil.hawley@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2015 

 
Jim Mackovjak 

Council Member 
jim.mackovjak@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2013 
 

Sandi Marchbanks 
Council Member  

sandi.marchbanks@gustavus-
ak.gov 

Term Expires 2014 

 
Tim Sunday 

Council Member  
tim.sunday@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2015 
COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Work Sessions: 
1st & 3rd Thursdays 

General Meeting: 
2nd Thursday 

 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 1 of 11 

City Council General Meeting 
June 13, 2013 

 
 
1.  Call to Order:  A General Meeting of the Gustavus City Council was 
held on June 13, 2013 at 7:00PM. 
Mayor Cacioppo called the meeting to order at 7:01PM.   
 
2.  Roll Call: 
Comprising a quorum of the Council the following were present: 
   Mayor Cacioppo 
   Vice Mayor Farevaag  (via teleconference) 
   Council Member DeBoer   
   Council Member Mackovjak (via teleconference) 
   Council Member Marchbanks 
   Council Member Hawley 
 
Absent: Council Member Sunday 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes 
 A.  May 9th, 2013 General Meeting Minutes 
  
Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved that minutes be  
   accepted as presented 
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Cacioppo, Farevaag, DeBoer, Marchbanks, Hawley 
No: Mackovjak 
 
Motion Passes 5/1  
 
4.  Mayor’s Request For Agenda Changes:  None 
 
5.  Committee Reports: 
 A.  Marine Facilities Committee report given by Joe Vanderzanden.   
 B.  Gustavus Public Library – no report given 
 

6.  Public Comment On Non-Agenda Items: 
  1. Robynn Jones 
  2. Pep Scott 
 

7.  Consent Agenda: 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 2 of 11 

A. Resolution 2013-15 A Resolution of the City of Gustavus 
Adopting a Policy and Procedure for Temporary Positions 

B. Resolution 2013-16 A Resolution of the City of Gustavus 
Adopting a Policy and Procedure for Regular Positions 

C. Resolution 2013-17 A Resolution Establishing Language 
for the Notice of Public Nuisance in the Gustavus Harbor 
Facilities 

D. Resolution 2013-18 A Resolution Establishing Gustavus 
Harbor Facilities' Offenses Fines 

E. FY13-21 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Providing 
for the Amendment of City Ordinance 4.01.010 City 
Obligations 

F. Amendment of City Clerk / Treasurer Job Description 
(Clerk's Note: Resolution 2013-15 was read aloud by Mayor Cacioppo, 

Resolution 2013-16 was read aloud by Council Member DeBoer, 
Resolution 2013-17 was read aloud by Councilmember Hawley.) 

 
(Clerk's Note:  Consent Agenda D was requested to be removed from the 

Consent Agenda and was moved to New Business as agenda A.)  
 

 (Clerk's Note: Council Member Mackovjak ended his phone connection at 
7:29 PM) 
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Farevaag moved we adopt the Consent  
   Agenda.   
Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Farevaag, Cacioppo, DeBoer, Marchbanks, Hawley 
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0  
 
 
8.  Ordinances for Public Hearing: 

A. FY13-16NCO Amending Disposal & Recycling Center (DRC) 
Budget 

 Public Hearing:  With no one who wished to be heard the public hearing 
         was closed.   
 
Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved we accept the  
   ordinance [FY13-16NCO] amending the [DRC] budget. 
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 3 of 11 

ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Marchbanks, Farevaag, Cacioppo, DeBoer, Hawley 
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0 
 
 

B.  FY13-17NCO Amendment of Administration Budget  
 
Public Hearing:  With no one who wished to be heard the public hearing 
         was closed.   
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved that we adopt   
   ordinance FY13-17NCO 
Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Hawley, DeBoer, Cacioppo, Marchbanks, Farevaag  
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0 
  

 
C. FY13-18NCO Amendment of Gustavus Volunteer Fire 

Department (GVFD) Budget  
 

Public Hearing:  With no one who wished to be heard the public hearing 
         was closed.   
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved that we adopt   
   ordinance number FY13-18NCO  
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: DeBoer, Hawley, Farevaag, Marchbanks, Cacioppo 
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0 
  
 

D.  FY13-19NCO Fiscal Year 2014 Budget 
 

Public Hearing:  With no one who wished to be heard the public hearing 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 4 of 11 

         was closed.   
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved that we adopt   
   ordinance number FY13-19NCO  
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Hawley, Marchbanks, Cacioppo, DeBoer, Farevaag 
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0 
 
(Clerk's note: Mayor Cacioppo called a three minute recess from 7:39 – 
7:41PM) 
 

E. FY13-20 Adopting a Major Revision for Title 8 – Marine Facilities 
 

Public Hearing:  With no one who wished to be heard the public hearing 
         was closed.   

 
Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved that we adopt  
   title 8  
Seconded by: None 

 
(Clerk's note: There was no second of Title 8 so the motion fell to the floor. 
The Council did not realize at the time that Vice Mayor Farevaag had lost 
her telephone connection and was unable to make a second. See the 
notes following agenda item 10. A.) 
 

9.  Unfinished Business:  None 
 
 
10. New Business: 
 

A. Resolution 2013-18 A Resolution Establishing Gustavus Harbor 
Facilities' Offenses Fines 
 

(Clerk's note: This item was moved from the consent agenda.)  
 
Public Comment:  Pep Scott, Robynn Jones, Karen Taylor, Colleen   
   Stansbury 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 5 of 11 

Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved to table   
   Resolution 2013-18   
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: DeBoer, Hawley, Marchbanks, Farevaag, Cacioppo 
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 5/0 
 
 
Reconsideration of Agenda Item 8. E. FY13-20 Adopting a Major 
Revision for Title 8 – Marine Facilities 
 
(Clerk's note: Vice Mayor Farevaag was disconnected from the meeting 
during agenda item 8E. After she was reconnected she noted that she 
would second the item. The Council discussed the matter and agreed to 
reconsider the agenda item – however no motion to reconsider was held.) 
 
Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved that we adopt  
   Title 8  
Seconded by: Vice Mayor Farevaag 

 
 
 
Amendment One to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Motion by Vice Mayor Farevaag to add (g) to "maintain  
   a user friendly facility" to section 8.01.01 
Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT ONE: 
Yes: DeBoer, Cacioppo, Farevaag, Hawley 
No: Marchbanks 
 
Motion passes 4/1 
 
 
 
Amendment Two to Agenda Item 8E 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 6 of 11 

Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved that we delete "or if the 
   property registration vessel property numbers are  
   expired" [from section 8.01.03(a)] 
 Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT TWO: 
Yes: Cacioppo, Farevaag, Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Marchbanks 
 
Motion passes 4/1 
 
 
 
Amendment Three to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to strike [the words]  
   shall from the language of 8.02.02 Powers and Duties  
   and use the word may [two uses] 
 Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT THREE: 
Yes: Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Cacioppo, Marchbanks, Farevaag 
 
Motion fails 2/3 
 
(Clerk's note: The Mayor allowed for public comment from 8:32 to 8:37 on 
this amendment and previous amendments) 
 
Public comment:  Greg Streveler, Ken Klawunder, Robynn Jones 
 

 
 
Amendment Four to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to amend section  
   8.02.04(C)(3) to read "… fails to meet for 90 days…" 
 Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT FOUR: 
Yes: DeBoer, Farevaag 
No: Cacioppo, Marchbanks, Hawley 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 7 of 11 

Motion fails 2/3 
 
 
 
Amendment Five to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Farevaag moved to amen section   
   8.02.04(C) to read "The Marine Facilities Advisory  
   Committee shall meet at least six times a year" 
 Seconded by: None 
 
(Clerk's note: without a second the motion fell to the floor) 
 
 
 
 
Amendment Six to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved that section 8.04.02 be 
   amended to read "… clean, orderly, and safe   
   condition." 
 Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT SIX: 
Yes: Farevaag, Marchbanks, Hawley, Cacioppo, DeBoer 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 5/0 
 
 
 
 
Amendment Seven to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved to delete "…fish waste  
   or parts" [from section 8.05.01(f)] 
 Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT SEVEN: 
Yes: Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Cacioppo, Marchbanks, Farevaag 
 
Motion fails 2/3 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 8 of 11 

 
Amendment Eight to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to strike the word  
   "physical" from section 8.05.01(i) 
 Seconded by: Vice Mayor Farevaag 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT EIGHT: 
Yes: Farevaag, Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Marchbanks, Cacioppo 
 
Motion fails 3/2 
 
 
 
Secondary Amendment the Amendment Eight  
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to [insert language] to  
   differentiate the Small Boat Harbor from the floats for  
   this amendment 
 Seconded by: None 
 
(Clerk's note: without a second, the motion to amend the amendment fell to 
the floor.) 
 
 
 
Amendment Nine to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved to change the length in 
section 8.06.05(a) from 40' to 50' 
 Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
(Clerk's note: the motion was withdrawn by Council Member Hawley with 
the concurrence of Council member DeBoer) 
 
 
 
Amendment Ten to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved that we accept the new 
   wording [as submitted by the Marine facilities   
   Committee for section 8.08.07 so that it reads "… may 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 9 of 11 

be used by vessel owners and shall be maintained safe and responsible 
manner. Floats that constitute a safety hazard as determined by the 
Harbormaster shall be repaired or dismantled at the operator/users 
expense." 
Seconded by: Vice Mayor Farevaag 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT TEN: 
Yes: Cacioppo, Farevaag, Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Marchbanks 
 
Motion passes 4/1 
 
 
 
Motion to suspend the rules and stay in session beyond 10PM 
 
Motion:  Council Member Marchbanks moved to suspend the  
   rules 
 Seconded by: Council Member DeBoer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON SUSPENDING THE RULES: 
Yes: Cacioppo, Marchbanks, Farevaag, Hawley, DeBoer 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 5/0 
 
 
 
 
Amendment Eleven to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to strike section   
   8.07.09 Underway Requirements 
 Seconded by: Vice Mayor Farevaag 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT ELEVEN: 
Yes: Farevaag, Hawley, DeBoer 
No: Marchbanks, Cacioppo 
 
Motion fails 3/2 
 
 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 10 of 11 

Amendment Twelve to Agenda Item 8E 
 
Motion:  Council Member Hawley moved to amend 8.07.10 
Accident Report, so that it reads "… or damage to property excluding 
personal property in excess of two hundred fifty dollars ($250) , shall… 
 Seconded by: MOTION WAS NOT SECONDED 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDMENT TWELVE: 
Yes: Marchbanks, Hawley, Farevaag, Cacioppo, DeBoer 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 5/0 
 
(Clerks note: in listening to the recording of this meeting I could not find 
where this motion was seconded) 
 
Reconsideration of agenda item 8.E. Adopting the original motion the 
original motion with the 12 amendments 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON THE RECONSIDERATION OF AGENDA ITEM 8.E – 
MOTION BY SANDI SECONDED BY NOEL - ADOPTING WITH THOSE 
AMENDMENTS 
Yes: Marchbanks, Farevaag, Cacioppo, Hawley DeBoer 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 5/0 
 
 
 
 
11. Staff Reports: 
 
  None  
 
12. City Council Reports 
 A.  Mayor’s Report 
 
 B.  City Clerk’s Report: 
 

13. City Council Questions & Comments 
 Report will be submitted by e-mail 
 
14. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items: 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 13, 2013 City Council General Meeting 

Page 11 of 11 

 
 1. Colleen Stansbury 
 2. Karen Taylor 
 3. Diane Klawunder 
 
15.  Executive Session 
 
(Clerk's note: Vice Mayor Farevaag's cellphone battery died prior to the 
executive session) 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to go into executive  
   session 
 Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON GOING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Yes: Marchbanks, Cacioppo, DeBoer, Hawley 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 4/0 
 
 
 
Motion:  Council Member DeBoer moved to return to regular  
   session 
 Seconded by: Council Member Marchbanks 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON RETURNING TO REGULAR SESSION: 
Yes: Hawley, DeBoer, Cacioppo, Marchbanks 
No: None 
 
Motion passes 4/0 
 
 
16. Adjournment: 
With no further business before the Council the meeting was adjourned 
at 10:25PM. 
 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 14, 2013 City Council Special Meeting 

Page 1 of 2 

City Council Special Meeting 
June 14, 2013 

 
 
1.  Call to Order:  
A Special Meeting of the Gustavus City Council was held on June 14, 
2013 at 9:00AM. 
 
Mayor Cacioppo called the meeting to order at 9:15AM. 
 
2.  Roll Call: 
Comprising a quorum of the Council the following were present: 
   Mayor Cacioppo 
   Vice Mayor Farevaag  (by teleconference) 
   Council Member Hawley 
   Council Member Marchbanks 
    
 
Council Members not in attendance: 
   Council Member Mackovjak  
   Council Member Sunday 
   Council Member DeBoer 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  None 
  
4.  Mayor’s Request For Agenda Changes:  None 
 
5.  Committee Reports:  None 
 
6.  Public Comment On Non-Agenda Items:  None 
  

7.  Consent Agenda:  None  
 
8.  Ordinances for Public Hearing:  None 
  

9.  Unfinished Business:  
  

A. Council Review of RFP for City Audit 
  
Public Comment:  
 Ken Klawunder 
 Diane Klawunder 
 



NOT YET APPROVED 
City Council Minutes 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
June 14, 2013 City Council Special Meeting 

Page 2 of 2 

Motion: Council Member Marchbanks moved the Council accept RFP 
  CoG FY14-01 
Seconded by: Council Member Hawley 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION: 
Yes: Cacioppo, Farevaag, Marchbanks, Hawley  
No: None 
 
Motion Passes 4/0 
 
 
10. New Business: None  
 

11. Staff Reports:  None 
 
12. City Council Reports 
 A.  Mayor’s Report: None  
 
 B.  City Clerk’s Report:  None 
 

13. City Council Questions & Comments:  None 
  
14. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:  None 
 
15.  Executive Session:  None 
 
16. Adjournment:   
With no further business before the Council the meeting was adjourned 
at 10:15 AM. 



________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance FY14-01NCO 

Page 1 of 1 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance No. FY14-01NCO 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 

THE DISPOSAL & RECYCLING CENTER (DRC) BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 
 
Section 2. For the Fiscal Year of 2014 estimated income and expenditures have 
changed from the estimates in the approved budget. 
 
Section 3.  For the current fiscal year the budget is amended to reflect the changed 
estimates as follows: 

  
Budget Category     Amounts 

      Original Budget    Amended Budget Change 
 INCOME  
 Grants – State CIP   $          0.00  $  46,531.00  +$46,531.00 
 TOTAL    $ 96,678.00  $143,209.00  +$46,531.00 
           

EXPENSE 
Capital Expense   $          0.00  $  46,531.00  +$46,531.00 
TOTAL    $ 96,678.00  $143,209.00  +$46,531.00 
 
Section 4. The budget is hereby amended as indicated and any portion of the 
approved budget inconsistent with this amendment is repealed. 

  
Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by 
the Gustavus City Council. 

 
 DATE INTRODUCED: July 11th, 2013 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: August 8th, 2013 
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of  ________, 
2013. 
 

          _________________________________________       
 Lou Cacioppo 

Mayor                        
 
 _________________________________________ 
 Attest: Paul Berry 
 Interim City Clerk  



Staff Request for Agenda Item 

City of Gustavus 

 

Staff Name: Paul Berry 

Explanation of Request: 

Publishing non-code Ordinance FY14-nn. 

This action is to allow the continuation of the DRC's Office project in FY14 by 
effectively “carrying over” unspent funds remaining from FY13. This action will be 
necessary for funds to be expended on the project during FY14. Funds remaining 
on the DRC Office project are $46,531 from an original amount of $55,000. 

 

Request for council work session attention:   Month   July, 2013             1st 
Thursday work session __X or 3rd Thursday work session___  

 

General Meeting Date:  

July 11, 2013 

 

Action Staff would like the City Council to take: 

Placement under the Consent Agenda: 

FY14-nnNCO Amendment of DRC Budget for Office Completion - Publish 

 

Supporting Documents attached:              X   YES                        NO 

 

If supporting documents are not attached, supply date documents will be 
supplied. (Deadline is Monday before General Meetings) 

 

Contact Person: Paul Berry DRC Manager/ Operator 697-2118 

dumpmaster@gustavus-ak.gov 



________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance FY14-02NCO 

Page 1 of 1 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance No. FY14-02NCO 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF   

THE LIBRARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 
 
Section 2. For the Fiscal Year of 2014 estimated expenditures have changed from 
the estimates in the approved budget. 
 
Section 3.  For the current fiscal year the budget is amended to reflect the changed 
estimates as follows: 

  
Budget Category     Amounts 

      Original Budget    Amended Budget Change 
 INCOME 
 Grants 
     Public Library Assistance  $  6,500.00        $  6,600.00       +$100.00 
 TOTAL    $66,776.00  $66,876.00  +$100.00 
  
           

EXPENSE 
Library Materials   $  5,000.00         $  5,100.00    +$100.00 
TOTAL    $66,776.00  $66,876.00  +$100.00 
  
 
Section 4. The budget is hereby amended as indicated and any portion of the 
approved budget inconsistent with this amendment is repealed. 

  
Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by 
the Gustavus City Council. 

 
 DATE INTRODUCED: July 11th, 2013 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: August 8th, 2013 
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this ______ day of 
_______________, 2013. 
 
 

 _________________________________________       
 Lou Cacioppo 

Mayor                        
 
 _________________________________________ 
 Attest: Paul Berry 
 Interim City Clerk  

  



Committee Request for Agenda Item 
City of Gustavus 

 
Committee Name: GCN Board 
 
Motion from Committee Meeting : Y Meeting Date:_07/3/13 
 
The GCN Board recognized that Corvid Computing of Gustavus provided a 
responsive bid to serve as GCN System Manager, and the GCN Board made 
a motion to recommend that the Gustavus City Council extend the contract 
for GCN System Manager for FY14 to Corvid Computing.  Motion Passed: 
3-0. 
 
Request for council work session attention:   
             1st Thursday work session X or 2nd Thursday work session __of 
July, 2013 
 
City council action requested by the Committee:____________________ 
Extend a contract for FY14 to Corvid Computing to serve as GCN System 
Manager.   
Date of City Council General Meeting at which Committee requests 
action to be taken: July 11, 2013 
 
Supporting Documents attached:   No 
 
Contact Person: Wayne Howell, GCN Board Chairman 



 
   

1 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE FY13-20 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS ADOPTING A MAJOR 

REVISION FOR TITLE 8 MARINE FACILITIES 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Classification   This ordinance is of general and permanent 

nature and shall become a part of the City of Gustavus 
Municipal Code. 

 
Section 2. Severability   If any section or subsection of this title is 

determined to be illegal or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, but remain valid and 
enforceable to the extent permitted by law.  

Section 3. Enactment   Now therefore, be it enacted by the Gustavus 
City Council that this major revision of Title 8 deletes Title 8 
in its entirety and adopts a new Title 8 that reads as follows: 
Bold red type are additions per Council determination 
June 13, 2013. Strike-throughs are deletions per Council 
determination June 13, 2013. 

 
TITLE 8 

 
MARINE FACILITIES 

 
Chapters: 
8.01  General Provisions 
8.02  Administration 
8.03  Registration and Fee Transaction 
8.04  Rules for Use of the Gustavus Harbor Facilities 
8.05  Prohibited Acts 
8.06  Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility and 
  Small Vessel Float System 
8.07  Salmon River Small Boat Harbor 
8.08  Control of Nuisance and Derelict Vessels, 
  Impoundment Procedure and Hearing Procedure 

 
*************** 

 
 Sections: 
 8.01 General Provisions 
  8.01.01 Purpose 

8.01.02 Implied Agreement for Use of Facilities; City Liability 
Denied 

8.01.03 Definitions 



 
   

2 

  
 8.02 Administration 

8.02.01 Marine Facilities Department, Harbormaster 
  8.02.02 Powers and Duties 
  8.02.03 Disclaimer of Liability 
  8.02.04 Marine Facilities Committee  
 
 8.03 Registration and Fee Transaction 
  8.03.01 Registration Required 

8.03.02 Harbor Use Fees, Charges and Penalties 
8.03.03 Fee Collection and Lien 
8.03.04 Fees for Pumping or Line Maintenance by 

Harbormaster 
8.03.05 Fee for Failure to Comply with Underway 

Requirement 
  

8.04 Rules for Use of the Gustavus Harbor Facilities 
8.04.01 Conduct in Gustavus Harbor Facilities – General 

Rules 
8.04.02 Condition of Facilities, Generally 
8.04.03 Failure of Owner, Master, Agent to allow 

Harbormaster to Board Vessel 
8.04.04 Persons to Comply with Harbormaster’s 

Communications 
8.04.05 Persons to Obey Lawful Regulations and Meet 

Accepted Safety Standards 
 

 8.05 Prohibited Acts 
  8.05.01 Prohibited Acts 
  8.05.02 Harbor Facilities Offenses Fine Schedule 
  8.05.03 Repeat Offenses 

8.05.04 Relationship to Other Laws 
 

8.06 Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility and Small Vessel Float 
System 
8.06.01 Preferential Dock Use at the Gustavus Multi-Modal 

Marine Facility (“Facility”) 
8.06.02 Security Rules Applicable During Alaska Marine 

Highway Service Ferry Operations 
8.06.03 Navigation Free Zone around Gustavus Multi-Modal 

Marine Facility 
8.06.04 Unauthorized Vessels Prohibited from Using Floating 

Support of AMHS Transfer Bridge 
8.06.05 Open Moorage at Small Vessel Float System 
8.06.06 Skiff and Kayak Float 
8.06.07 Breakwater Loading/Unloading and Moorage 
8.06.08 Tender Mooring Space 
8.06.09 Loading Areas 

 
8.07 Salmon River Small Boat Harbor  



 
   

3 

8.07.01 Salmon River Small Boat Harbor (“small boat 
harbor”) Zones 

 8.07.02 Freight Staging Zone 
 8.07.03 Long-term Storage Zone 
 8.07.04 Launching Zone 
 8.07.05 Vehicle/Trailer Parking Zone 
 8.07.06 Residential Use 
 8.07.07 Historical Wooden Floats 
 8.07.08 New Construction 
 8.07.09 Underway Requirements 
 8.07.10 Accident Report 
 8.07.11 Duties of Owners/Operators 
 
8.08 Control of Nuisance and Derelict Vessel and/or Property, 

Impoundment Procedure, Hearing Procedure 
 8.08.01 Nuisances Declared 
 8.08.02 Abatement of Nuisances 
 8.08.03 Vessel and/or Property That May be Impounded 
 8.08.04 Notice of Intent to Impound 
 8.08.05 Hearing 
 8.08.06 Decision 
 8.08.07 Impoundment 
 8.08.08 Notice of Sale 
 8.08.09 Sale 
 

 
Chapter 8.01 

General Provisions 
Section: 
 8.01.01 Purpose 
 8.01.02 Jurisdiction   
 8.01.03 Implied Agreement for Use of Facilities; City Liability 

Denied 
 8.01.04 Definitions 
 
8.01.01 Purpose. The purpose of this title is: 
 
(a) To provide for the safe and efficient use, and orderly management and 

control of all harbor facilities owned, managed or operated by the City of 
Gustavus (“City”), including but not limited to the Small Vessel Float 
System and its interface with the State of Alaska-owned Gustavus Multi-
Modal Marine Facility, and the City of Gustavus-owned Salmon River 
Small Boat Harbor Facility. 

(b) To protect and preserve the lives, health, safety and well-being of persons 
who use, work or maintain property at the City-owned and maintained 
harbor facilities; 

(c) To protect public property; 
(d) To prevent fire or health hazards and abate nuisances; 
(e) To prevent the use of the harbor facilities for derelict vessels and 

property; 



 
   

4 

(f) To ensure adequate financial resources are available to acquire, plan, 
design, construct, equip, operate, maintain or replace harbor facilities 
through the assessment of user fees or through other means. 

(g) To maintain a user-friendly facility 
 
8.01.02 Jurisdiction. 
 
The City of Gustavus assumes control and jurisdiction over the Small Vessel 
Float System and the City of Gustavus-owned Salmon River Small Boat Harbor 
Facility. The provisions of this title shall be construed to supplement federal 
laws and regulations, in cases of concurrent jurisdiction. 

   
8.01.03 Implied Agreement for Use of Facilities; City Liability Denied.   
 
The use of City-owned and maintained harbor facilities constitutes an 
agreement by the owner, operator, master and/or managing agent of a vessel 
comply with this title and any  regulation adopted by the City of Gustavus,  and 
to pay all fees and charges provided by this title. The City of Gustavus shall not 
be liable for loss of or damage to property, or injury to persons within or upon 
its harbor facilities.   
 
8.01.04 Definitions.   
 
Whenever the words, terms, phrases and their derivations set forth in this 
section are used in this title, they shall have the meaning set forth in this 
section.  
(a)  Abandoned Vessel and/or property.  Any vessel whose last registered 

or documented owner has failed to contact or cannot be contacted by the 
Harbormaster via the most recent contact information on file. A vessel is 
deemed abandoned if the last registered or documented owner disclaims 
ownership, or the owner cannot be determined, or if the vessel property 
registration numbers are expired, or other identification has been 
obliterated or removed in a manner that precludes identification.  

(b) Anchor. To secure a vessel to the bed of a body of water by lowering an 
anchor or anchors or by using a buoy secured to the bed of a body of 
water, or by using other ground tackle. 

(c) Cargo.  Goods or materials that are loaded onto or off-loaded from a 
vessel.  

(d) Cargo Carrier.  The vessel hired to carry goods or materials.  
(e) Charter Vessel. A vessel used to transport hunters,  recreational 

saltwater or freshwater fishermen, whale watching or wildlife viewing 
individuals or groups, kayakers and/or kayak hauling for hire or any 
motor vessel measuring less than 200 tons gross and not more than 24 
meters (79 feet) in length engaged in transport of passengers;   

(f) Commercial Vessel.  A fishing vessel, fish tender vessel or fish 
processing vessel or any other vessel engaged in commercial activity such 
as mining, logging, scientific research, or similar activity, whether on a 
for-profit or non-profit basis. 



 
   

5 

(g) Derelict. Any vessel or property that the City determines to be, or 
appears to be forsaken, abandoned, deserted, cast away, unsound, 
unseaworthy, or unfit for its trade or occupation. 

(h) Distress.  A condition of a vessel that the City determines evidences 
disability or a present or obvious imminent danger, which, if prolonged, 
could endanger life and/or property. 

(i) Dump.  To discharge, deposit, dump, spill, leak, inject, or place matter 
into or on any land or water so that such matter or any constituent part 
thereof enters the waters of the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility, 
Small Vessel Float System or Salmon River Small Boat Harbor 

(j) Emergency.  A condition of a vessel that the City determines evidences 
imminent or proximate danger to life or property in which time is of the 
essence.  

(k) Facility.  The Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility (“Facility”) is   
owned, operated, and maintained by the State of Alaska Department of 
Transportation and Public Facilities. The Facility includes the dock and 
its associated approach, mooring, and transfer structures, the Staging 
Area Island, and the shore-side infrastructure providing the facility via 
Dock Road in Gustavus.   

(l) Floats.  All City-owned and maintained floating walkways located within  
harbor facilities and designated for vessel moorage or for parking skiffs 
or kayaks. The City’s floats include:  

 
(1) Boat launch ramp float. The City-owned and maintained 
floating walkway used in conjunction with the Salmon River boat 
launch ramp.   
(2) Mooring float.  Any City-owned and maintained floating 
walkway attached to the Gustavus Multi-modal Marine Facility, 
and designated by signage or otherwise for mooring vessels.   
(3) Tender mooring space.  That portion of the mooring float 
used for short-term moorage of tenders.   
(4) Skiff and kayak float. That portion of the Small Vessel Float 
System that includes the temporary parking of skiffs, kayaks, or 
canoes on an out-of-water inclined surface.   

 
(m) The Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility. Owned, operated, and 

maintained by the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and 
Public Facilities, the Facility includes the dock and its associated 
approach, mooring, and transfer structures, the Staging Area Island, and 
the shore-side infrastructure providing access to the facility via Dock 
Road in Gustavus, Alaska 

(n)   Harbor Appeal Panel. A group of two council members and one public 
member appointed by the Mayor and ratified by the City Council to hear 
appeals from citations issued by the Harbormaster for violations of this 
Title.   

(o) Harbor facilities. Harbor facilities includes all mooring devices, 
including but not limited to floats, fingers and stalls, grid irons, and 
other appurtenances located in the small boat harbor, the float system, 
boat launching ramps, land storage areas and loading areas under the 
jurisdiction of the City for health, safety or convenience of the public, 



 
   

6 

including the following harbor facilities, or any other harbor facilities 
later established: 

(1)  The Small Vessel Float System (Floats). All City-owned and 
maintained floating walkways that are designated for mooring 
vessels and that are attached to the State of Alaska’s Gustavus 
Multi-Modal Marine Facility, which Facility includes the dock and 
its associated approach, mooring, and transfer structures, the 
Staging Area Island, and all related shore-side infrastructure.    
(2)  The Salmon River Small Boat Harbor Facility (small boat 
harbor).  Parcel No. 3, Government Lot 6, Section 8 of Township 
40 S., Range 59 E., Copper River Meridian.  

(p) Harbor Facilities Use Fees.  All facility use rates, storage fees, penalties  
and transactions.  

(q) Harbormaster.  The individual appointed by the Mayor and ratified by 
the City Council to serve as Harbormaster, and/or any deputy 
Harbormaster or other City employee authorized by the Mayor to assume 
Harbormaster duties.  The Harbormaster is authorized to manage and 
control the use of all harbor facilities, to enforce this Title, and to issue 
citations to individuals who violate these ordinances, as set out more 
fully in Chapter 2 of this Title.  

(r) Hazardous Substance  
(1) an element or compound that, when it enters into the atmosphere 
or in or upon the water or surface or subsurface land, presents an 
imminent and substantial danger to the public health or welfare, 
including but not limited to fish, animals, vegetation, or any part of the 
natural habitat in which they are found;  
(2) a hazardous substance defined under 42 U.S.C.9601(14); 

(s) Loading areas.  All of the designated areas of any float, when suitably 
posted and marked, are to be used only by the general public, without 
charge, for the purpose of loading and unloading of supplies, equipment 
and stores.  Use of the loading zones is limited to two (2) hours in any 24 
hour period.   

(t) Long-term Storage Zone. An area designated by resolution of the 
Gustavus City Council for the non-permanent storage of marine-related 
equipment. 

(u) Moor. To make a vessel fast to the shore or to an anchor. 
(v) Navigation Clear Zone.  A radius of three hundred feet (300’), or 

diameter of six hundred feet (600’), from the Gustavus Multi-modal 
Marine Facility dock face.   

(w) Oil.  A derivative of a liquid hydrocarbon and includes without limitation 
crude oil, lubricating oil, sludge, oil refuse, diesel fuel, gasoline or 
another petroleum-related product or by-product; 

(x) Open Mooring Space. A space on the float system which is available on 
a first-come, first-served basis, used for temporary or short-term mooring.  
Rafting out might be necessary during peak terms of occupancy. 

(y) Person(s). A natural person or a business, corporation, joint venture, 
partnership, association, organization, trust, society, or governmental 
agency. 

(z) Pollutant. Any substance or material defined as a pollutant under 33 
U.S.C. 1362(6). 



 
   

7 

(aa) Public Nuisance. A vessel and/or property or other item that causes an 
obstruction to navigation, or that is abandoned or derelict or unfit or 
unseaworthy or that is unsafe or that is maintained in such a manner as 
to constitute a fire hazard, or a vessel that is sunken or in imminent 
danger of sinking. 

(bb) Public Vessel.  A watercraft that is owned, operated, or chartered by the 
United States, the State of Alaska, or a political subdivision thereof. 

(cc) Staging Area Island.  The man-made island lying between the shore and 
the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility and connected to the shore 
and the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility by a steel approach trestle. 

(dd) Steel Breakwater Float.  A barrier that breaks the force of waves, 
attached to the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility that extends two 
hundred feet (200’) east of the dock face.  

(ee) Transfer of cargo.  All types of loading, unloading, transfer and/or 
containerization, or other intermodal handling of any kind of cargo.  

(ff) Transient.  Transient means using open mooring areas on a temporary 
basis.  The transient areas are available on a "first-come, first served" 
basis. 

(gg) Transient Vessel.  A vessel using an open moorage space. Transient 
vessels include, but are not limited to: vessels seeking a harbor of refuge, 
day use, or overnight use of a moorage space, as determined by the 
Harbormaster. 

(hh) Vessel.  Any watercraft of every kind and description, including but not 
limited to vessels, ships, boats, skiffs, tenders, barges, dredges or 
watercraft of any description. 

(ii) Vessel Operator.  The master, managing agent, person in navigational 
control of, or other person responsible for the operation of the vessel. 

(jj) Vessel Owner. The documented or registered owner of the vessel. 
(kk) Vessel Seaworthiness. A state of readiness and safety which each  

vessel moored or docked in the harbor facilities must meet, including 
being capable of getting underway under its own power at all times.  In 
order to be deemed seaworthy, a vessel must be constructed and 
maintained for the primary purpose of navigating the waterways.  The 
Harbormaster may require any vessel to demonstrate seaworthiness by 
starting its engine or other means of propulsion, navigating away from 
the dock, and returning to the dock in a safe manner.  Any vessel not 
demonstrating basic seaworthiness in the Harbormaster’s judgment may 
be barred or removed from harbor facilities.  

 
Chapter 8.02 

Administration 
 
Section: 
 8.02.01 Harbor Facilities Department, Harbormaster 
 8.02.02 Powers and Duties 
 8.02.03 Disclaimer of Liability 
 8.02.04 Marine Facilities Committee  

   
8.02.01    Harbor Facilities Department, Harbormaster. 
 

http://dictionary.reference.com/browse/break
http://dictionary.reference.com/browse/force


 
   

8 

There shall be a Harbor Facilities Department, the head of which shall be the 
Harbormaster, appointed by the Mayor and ratified by the City Council for an 
indefinite term. 
 
8.02.02   Powers and Duties. 
 
(a)  Scope of Responsibility. The Harbormaster shall be responsible for the 
management and control, operation and maintenance of the City's harbor 
facilities.  The Harbormaster shall stay in close communication with State of 
Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities personnel regarding 
the coordination of access and the use of the state-owned and managed 
Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility. 
(b)  Power and Duties. The Harbormaster shall have the following authority: 

(1) To board, inspect and move any vessel within the harbor facilities 
at any time to abate a nuisance, to protect life and property, and to 
otherwise enforce the provisions of this Title. 
(2) To replace defective mooring lines, secure any vessel and/or 
property with additional mooring lines, and pump vessels that are in a 
dangerous condition or pose danger to other nearby vessels or property. 
(3) To post signs and notices that inform the public of authorized and 
prohibited uses of the harbor facilities. 
(4) To issue notices of violation against any person who violates any 
provision of the Gustavus Municipal Code.  
(5)   To require the owner of any vessel to demonstrate that it is in a 
seaworthy condition as a condition of use of the harbor facilities.   

 
8.02.03 Disclaimer of Liability.   
 
The authority granted to the Harbormaster shall not create an obligation or 
duty requiring the Harbormaster to take any action to protect or preserve any 
vessel or property located at or within the harbor facilities, or utilizing the 
harbor facilities.  The City of Gustavus shall not be liable for any loss or 
damage to vessels or personal property stored at the harbor facilities arising 
from any cause. 
 
8.02.04 Marine Facilities Advisory Committee 
 
(a) There is established the Marine Facilities Advisory Committee, which 

shall consist of at least three members appointed by the Gustavus City 
Council. To the extent possible, appointments to the Marine Facilities 
Advisory Committee shall include persons having marine, engineering, 
financial, and other skills relevant to harbor facility affairs.  
Appointments shall be for three years, after which a former member is 
required to wait at least one (1) year before applying for re-appointment. 
Initial appointments shall be for staggered terms of two and three years. 

(b) Each committee member shall be a qualified voter residing in the City of 
Gustavus. 

(c)   The Marine Facilities Advisory Committee shall meet at least once each 
month. 



 
   

9 

(1) At least one member of the Marine Facilities Advisory Committee 
shall be physically present at the designated meeting place in 
Gustavus for each meeting. 

(2) Marine Facilities Advisory Committee member(s) physically absent 
from Gustavus may participate by teleconference for no more than 
four (4) meetings per year, beginning the date of their appointment. 

(3) If the Marine Facilities Advisory Committee fails to meet for sixty 
(60) days, the Gustavus City Council shall declare the positions 
vacant and assume the responsibilities of the committee while 
recruiting members. 

(d) Duties.  The Marine Facilities Advisory Committee shall review with the 
Harbormaster harbor facility operations, management, administration, 
ordinances, policies, fees and charges, and shall recommend changes to 
the Harbormaster and City Council as necessary or appropriate.  The 
Chair of the Marine Facilities Advisory Committee shall report to the 
Gustavus City Council as necessary, but not less than once each 
calendar quarter.   

 
(e) Vacancies.  A vacancy in the Marine Facilities Advisory Committee shall 

exist under the following conditions: 
(1)   If a person appointed to membership fails to qualify and take office 

within thirty (30) days of appointment; 
(2)   If a member departs from the City of Gustavus with the intent to 

remain away for a period of one hundred twenty (120) or more 
days; 

(3)   If a member submits his or her resignation to the Gustavus City 
Clerk; 

(4)   If a member fails to attend three (3) consecutive Marine Facilities 
Committee meetings. 

(f) Vacancies declared and filled by Council.  A vacancy shall be declared if 
one of the conditions in (e) prevails.  The vacancy shall be filled according 
to provisions in Title 2. 

   
Chapter 8.03 

Registration and Fee Transaction 
Section: 

8.03.01 Registration Required 
8.03.02 Harbor Use Fees, Charges and Penalties 
8.03.03 Fee Collection and Lien 
8.03.04 Reserved 

 
8.03.01 Registration Required.   
 
(a) The owner or operator of each vessel using the Gustavus harbor facilities 

shall register each vessel with the Harbormaster or the City Clerk on 
forms prescribed by the Harbormaster or City Clerk.  The vessel 
registration form shall require all information deemed pertinent by the 
Harbormaster or City Clerk.  

(b) Any vessel not currently registered with the City of Gustavus or the 
Harbormaster may be moved at any time by the Harbormaster, with or 



 
   

10 

without notice to the vessel owner or operator, and the vessel owner or 
operator shall be charged the applicable fee as set out in the Gustavus 
Harbor Fee Schedule.   

 
8.03.02    Harbor Use Fees, Charges and Penalties 
 
(a) The Gustavus Harbor Fee Schedule shall be adopted, and may be 

amended from time to time, by the Gustavus City Council by resolution.  
(b)  Payment of all harbor use fees, including open moorage, storage and 

other fees, charges, penalties or fines shall be made by check, cash or 
money order to the City of Gustavus.  Use fees must be paid in advance.   

(c) Annual harbor use fees are non-refundable. 
(d) Users who fail to pay past-due harbor use fees, past-due sales tax or 

past-due fish box tax to the City of Gustavus will be denied use of 
facilities until paid in full, including any penalties, fees and interest.  All 
delinquent fees, penalties, and interest operate as a lien against the 
vessel.  

(e) The charges for a cargo carrier for use of the Salmon River Small Boat 
Harbor must be remitted to the City within 30 days of use and if not so 
remitted, such payment is delinquent.  The postmark shall determine the 
date of filing payments.  In addition, a late payment penalty of five 
percent (5%) per month or any fraction thereof, not to exceed a total 
accrual of twenty-five percent (25%), shall be added to all delinquent fees, 
until such use fees, penalty and interest thereon have been paid.  Such 
penalty shall be assessed and collected in the same manner as the fee is 
assessed and collected.  In addition to these penalties, interest at the 
rate of fifteen percent (15%) per year on the delinquent use fees is 
collected. 

(f)  If the City Clerk or Harbormaster is unavailable, a temporary moorage 
form will be available at the Small Vessel Float System.  The user’s fee 
shall be deposited in a drop box labeled for that purpose. Payment shall 
be by cash or cheque.  Failure to register with the City Clerk or 
Harbormaster, or to deposit the required fee in the drop box within 4 
hours of arrival in the harbor facilities subjects the vessel owner and 
operator to a fine of $25.00.  Such fines operate as a lien on the subject 
vessel.   

 
8.03.03 Fee Collection and Lien 
(a) Penalties for late user fees shall be established by resolution by the City 

Council. 
(b)      The Mayor is authorized to commence suit or exercise any other legal 

remedy to collect any delinquent fee or fine.  In the event such suit is 
commenced, the person obligated to pay the fee or penalty shall, in 
addition to any other liability imposed by this title, be liable for the City’s 
actual, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs associated with the collection. 

(c) In addition to all other remedies available by law, the City shall have a 
lien for any fees, interest and costs of collection, including attorney’s fees, 
provided by this title, upon any vessel, equipment, tackle, gear, cargo, 
vehicle and property giving rise to such fees.  The lien may be enforced 
by any procedure otherwise provided by law. 



 
   

11 

 
8.03.04 Reserved 
 
 
   

Chapter 8.04 
Rules for Use of the Gustavus Harbor Facilities 

 
Section: 
 8.04.01 Conduct in Harbor Facilities – General Rules 
 8.04.02 Condition of Facilities, Generally 

8.04.03 Failure of Owner, Master, Agent or Occupant to Allow 
Harbormaster to Board Vessel 

8.04.04 Persons to Comply with Harbormaster’s 
Communications 

8.04.05 Persons to Obey Lawful Regulations and Meet Accepted 
Safety Standards 

 
8.04.01  Conduct in Harbor Facilities – General Rules. 
 
(a)   Vessels moored within the harbor facilities shall be capable of meeting 

the provisions of 8.07.09 Underway Requirements at all times, unless 
specifically authorized by the Harbormaster. 

(b) Vessels, when unattended, shall be securely moored with lines, adequate 
in size and number for the boat, and suitable for weather and other 
conditions.  Lines shall be easily removed by hand.  

(c) Vessels moored within the harbor facilities shall, at all times, be 
seaworthy and ready for immediate or emergency departure into local 
waters.  At no time may a vessel be chained or locked to any float or 
other component or structure of the harbor facilities. 

(d) All moorage of vessels in the harbor facilities shall be in accordance with 
posted signs or as otherwise directed by the Harbormaster or the City of 
Gustavus. 

(e)  All vessels and vehicles in, at or on the harbor facilities shall be parked, 
moored and maneuvered in a safe and orderly manner. 

 
8.04.02  Condition of Facilities, Generally 
 
Vessel owners or operators using the harbor facilities shall keep vessels, 
equipment, gear, piers, or floats in the vicinity of their vessels in a neat, clean, 
orderly and safe condition. 
 
 
8.04.03 Failure of Vessel Owner, Vessel Operator or Occupant to allow 

Harbormaster to Board Vessel 
 
Failure of a vessel owner, operator or occupant to allow the Harbormaster to 
board a vessel pursuant to 8.02.02(b) shall be deemed a violation of this 
chapter.  
 



 
   

12 

8.04.04  Persons to Comply with Harbormaster’s Communications 
 
Any person using the harbor facilities or any harbor facility equipment shall 
comply with all verbal or written communications of the Harbormaster.  
 
  
 
 

Chapter 8.05 
Prohibited Acts 

Section: 
  
 8.05.01 Prohibited Acts 
 8.05.02 Harbor Facilities Offenses Fine Schedule 
 8.05.03 Relationship to Other Laws 
  
8.05.01 Prohibited Acts.  It is unlawful for any person using the 
Gustavus harbor facilities to commit or allow any of the following prohibited 
acts: 
 
(a) Improper Vessel Operation.  It is unlawful for a person to operate or 

cause to be operated any vessel or watercraft in a reckless or  negligent 
manner or in disregard for the safety of person(s) or property within the 
limits of the harbor facilities. 

  
It is unlawful for a person to operate any vessel or watercraft in a 
manner that unreasonably or unnecessarily interferes with other vessels 
or watercraft, or with the free and proper navigation of the waterways of 
the harbor facilities. 

(b) Hazard to Navigation.  No person shall create or fail to remove, after 
request from the Harbormaster, a hazard to navigation within the harbor 
facilities. 

(c) Improper Mooring.  No person shall moor or anchor any boat, vessel or 
other floating structure: 
(1) in a manner which  obstructs access to or use of the harbor 

facilities; 
(2) in the clear zone of the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility per 

Section 8.06.03.  
(d) Improper Use of Harbor Facilities.  No person shall use the harbor 

facilities for purposes or in a manner contrary to Title 8 of this 
ordinance. 

(e) Improper Dressing and Processing of Fish.  It is unlawful to dress or 
process fish, including but not limited to gutting, filleting, fletching, 
smoking or steaking except aboard a vessel at the harbor facilities.  

(f) Improper Waste Disposal.  It is unlawful for any person to dispose of 
trash, garbage, refuse, human waste, animal carcasses or parts, fish 
waste or parts, or any similar substance in or on the water or the land of 
the harbor facilities.   



 
   

13 

(g) Improper Dumping or Discarding of Property.  It is unlawful for any 
person to discard, dump or otherwise place on or into the harbor 
facilities or any waterway: 

 (1) batteries;  
(2) oil; 
(3)  hazardous substance(s) including but not limited to solvents, 

antifreeze, paint (including paint chips, flakes and debris), and 
detergents or cleaners containing hazardous substance(s); or 

(4)  fuel, or any other petroleum product;  
(5)  refuse;  
(6)  garbage; or 
(7)  other pollutants. 

(h)   Unattended Cargo or Freight.  No person shall deposit or leave any cargo, 
merchandise, supplies, freight, articles or other objects upon any float, 
ramp, decline, walk, or other public place at the harbor facilities. Free 
and unencumbered access to and within the harbor facilities must be 
maintained at all times. 

(i)   Control of Animals.  All dogs or other animals shall at all times be under 
the physical control of the owner or person in charge of the animal. 
Owners will be responsible for cleaning up after their pets. It is unlawful 
to leave pet feces on any harbor facility.  The owner or caretaker of any 
pet who violates this section is responsible for the resulting fine.  

(j)   Posting Written or Printed Matter.  No person shall erect, place, write, 
post or maintain any written or printed matter, advertising matter or sign 
at the harbor facilities without having first obtained permission of the 
Harbormaster.  All unauthorized signs shall be removed by the 
Harbormaster.  Written or printed matter authorized by the 
Harbormaster may remain in place for no more than seven (7) 
consecutive days. It is unlawful to remove, deface or destroy any sign or 
printed matter placed by the Harbormaster.  

(k) Improper Petroleum Product Disposal. No person shall release any fuel, 
oil, their derivatives, wastes or by-products, or other petroleum products 
into the waters or onto the lands of the harbor facilities. 

(l) Improper Fuel Dispensing.  Fueling of vessels shall occur only at a 
location designated by the State of Alaska Fire Marshal and in 
accordance with a procedure approved by the State of Alaska Fire 
Marshal. 

(m)   Conducting Commercially-oriented Business.  There will be no leased or 
rented commercial uses of any portion of the land under the State of 
Alaska Cooperative Resource Management Agreement ADL107456.  

(n) Unlawful Construction.  No person shall alter terrain at, or engage in 
building or construction at any City harbor facilities without the consent 
of the City Council. 

 
8.05.02 Harbor Facilities Offenses Fine Schedule.  
 
(a) All fines established under this Title are civil penalties.  Proof of liability 

for any penalty is sufficient if the Harbormaster proves by a 
preponderance of the evidence that the alleged offense was committed.  



 
   

14 

There shall be no right to a jury trial or appointed counsel to defend 
against any citation brought under this Title.  

(b) If a fine amount is set for an offense arising under this chapter, a person 
charged with that offense can dispose of the charge (by mail or in person) 
by paying the fine amount plus any surcharge required to be imposed by 
AS 29.25.075 and checking the “no contest plea” box on the back of the 
citation.  Alternatively, the person may choose to exercise the following 
appeal rights:  

(c) The first level of appeal shall be to the Harbor Appeal Panel.  The 
question on appeal shall be whether the violation charged in the citation 
has been proven by the Harbormaster by a preponderance of the 
evidence.   

(d)   Any subsequent appeal shall be taken to the Superior Court of the State 
of Alaska at Juneau.  

(e) The fine amounts are set forth in resolution by the Gustavus City 
Council. 

 
8.05.03 Repeat Offenses.  Each repeat offense shall carry a fine double 
the amount of the previous offense. In the case of a repeat offense, at the 
recommendation of the Harbormaster and confirmation of the City Council, an 
individual or commercial entity responsible for said acts may be prohibited from 
using the facility for up to one (1) year.   
 
8.05.04 Relationship to Other Laws 
 
(a) In addition to the requirements set forth in this Chapter, certain federal, 

state, local and international laws and regulations, including but not 
limited to environmental, health, safety and sanitation laws and 
regulations, are applicable to all Gustavus harbor facilities.  All persons 
are hereby warned and placed on notice that they are responsible for 
determining their obligations under such laws and that they may be 
subject to applicable penalties, fines, imprisonment, and other forms of 
liability for violation of such laws and regulations. 

(b) The dumping of any substance or material prohibited by this Chapter 
shall not result in liability or penalties under this Chapter if such 
dumping is authorized by and conducted in full compliance with 
applicable federal and state permits.  The burden shall be on the alleged 
violator to establish, as an affirmative defense, that such conduct is 
authorized by and in full compliance with applicable federal and state 
permits. 

 
Chapter 8.06 

Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility and  
Small Vessel Float System 

 
8.06.01                 Preferential Dock Use at the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine 

Facility (“Facility”) 
 



 
   

15 

(a)   Public Vessels are entitled to priority use of the Facility.  In the event of 
conflicting use by public vessels, Alaska Marine Highway System (AMHS) 
ferries have first priority. 

(b) On the south face of the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility, 
preferential privileges are accorded to berth AMHS ferry vessels in 
accordance with the AMHS published schedule.  Any variance in the 
AMHS schedule will be provided to the Harbormaster a minimum of six 
(6) hours prior to arrival.  Other vessels using the dock will be cleared 
thirty (30) minutes prior to arrival of the AMHS ferry.  

(c)   Any vessel moored in such a manner that it could potentially  interfere 
with the docking of any AMHS vessel shall at all times have onboard 
competent crew that is capable of moving the vessel away from the dock 
within fifteen (15) minutes of notice by the Harbormaster. 

 

 
8.06.02 Security Rules Applicable During Alaska Marine Highway 

Service Ferry Operations 
 
The following security rules apply to the dock facility south of the man-made 
island including the Small Vessel Float System, during AMHS vessel operations 
beginning thirty (30) minutes prior to the vessel’s actual arrival and until thirty 
(30) minutes after its actual departure from the main dock moorage.  During 
that time: 
 
(a) Only ticketed AMHS passengers, AMHS crew, or others authorized or 

directed by AMHS employees will be allowed access to and/or from the 
vessel using the transfer bridge or covered pedestrian walkway on the 
west side of the transfer bridge. 

(b) Only embarking or disembarking passengers, and commercial or service 
vehicles authorized or directed by AMHS employees, will be allowed 
access to or from the vessel using the transfer bridge.   

(c) Access to and from the Small Vessel Float System for authorized small 
boat harbor users will be limited to pedestrian traffic only via the open 
pedestrian walkway on the Small Vessel Float System side of the transfer 
bridge.  Users of this access system must follow the directions of the 
AMHS ferry crew or authorized shoreside personnel directing pedestrian 
and vehicle traffic to and from the vessel. 

(d) Vehicles parked along the Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine Facility dock 
face shall be moved to the Staging Area Island or land side (north) of the 
trestle approach prior to AMHS docking. 

(e) In the case of emergency, authorized law enforcement or emergency 
response personnel and vehicles will be allowed access to the area south 
of the man-made island as required. 

 
8.06.03 Navigation Clear Zone around Gustavus Multi-Modal Marine 

Facility  
 

(a)  The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and/or the U.S. Coast Guard may 
establish clear zones at or in the vicinity of the dock area to promote 
safety for vessels approaching and departing the dock facility. 



 
   

16 

(b) Vessels underway to or from the Small Vessel Float System shall remain 
outside any established clear zone areas and the ferry vessel approach 
and departure paths to and from the dock.  

 
8.06.04 Unauthorized Vessels Prohibited from Using Floating Support 

of AMHS Transfer Bridge 
 
No vessel shall be tied to or placed upon the blue floating structure that 
supports the AMHS transfer bridge. 
 
8.06.05 Open Moorage at Small Vessel Float System.  
 
(a) Vessels using open moorage areas shall not exceed forty (40) feet in 

actual overall length, including all engines, bowsprits, anchors, dinghy 
davits, or other protruding structures.   

(b) All open mooring space is available to members of the public for 
temporary mooring, on a first-come, first-served basis.  

(c) No vessel owner or vessel operator shall have any exclusive right to open 
mooring space. Should any vessel moored at such mooring leave such 
space for any purpose, it shall have no exclusive right to return to the 
same space if, upon return, it is found that the space is occupied by 
another vessel.  

(d) Open moorage shall not exceed the times posted on signage at the floats, 
to be established by the Gustavus City Council by resolution. 

 
8.06.06 Skiff and Kayak Float. 
 
(a) Vessels using the skiff and kayak floats shall not exceed eighteen (18) 

feet in actual length, excluding motor(s), and shall not weigh more than 
one thousand five hundred (1,500) pounds.   

(b) Open spaces on the skiff and kayak float shall be utilized on a “first-
come, first-served” basis. No skiff or skiff owner or operator or kayak or 
kayak owner or operator, shall have any exclusive right to open skiff and 
kayak float space. Should any skiff or kayak stored in a skiff and kayak 
float space leave such space for any purpose, it shall have no exclusive 
right to return to the same space if, upon return, it is found that the 
space is occupied by another vessel. 

(c) Open moorage shall not exceed the times posted on signage at the floats, 
to be established by the Gustavus City Council by resolution. 

 
8.06.07 Breakwater Loading/Unloading and Moorage 
 
(a) Vessels using the steel breakwater float shall not exceed seventy-five (75) 

feet in actual overall length, including all engines, bowsprits, anchors, 
dinghy davits, or other protruding structures.    

(b) Moorage at the steel breakwater float shall not exceed the times posted 
on signage at the floats, to be established by the Gustavus City Council 
by resolution 

 
8.06.08 Tender mooring  



 
   

17 

 
Tenders may be moored bow-in for daily or overnight moorage on the west side 
of the inclined skiff/kayak float. 
 
8.06.09 Loading Areas 
 
All of the approaches and designated areas of any float, when posted and 
marked, are to be used by the general public, without charge, for the purpose of 
active loading and unloading of supplies, equipment and stores.  Use of the 
Loading Areas is limited to 2 hours in any 24 hour period.  
 

 
Chapter 8.07 

Salmon River Small Boat Harbor 
Section: 
8.07.01 Salmon River Small Boat Harbor Zones 
8.07.02 Freight Staging Zone 
8.07.03 Long-term Storage Zone 
8.07.04 Launching Zone 
8.07.05 Vehicle/Trailer Parking Zone 
8.07.06 Residential 
8.07.07 Historical Wooden Floats 
8.07.08 New Construction 
8.07.09 Underway Requirements 
8.07.10 Accident Report 
8.07.11 Duties of Owners/Operators 
 
 
 
8.07.01 Salmon River Small Boat Harbor (“small boat harbor”) Zones.  
 
The Salmon River Small Boat Harbor is comprised of four zones: Launching, 
Freight Staging, Long-term Storage, and Boat Trailer/Vehicle Parking.  
 
8.07.02 Freight Staging Zone.   
 
Incoming and outgoing cargo and commodities of a size and type not suitable 
for containerized storage may be neatly stored in areas designated for this 
purpose. 
 
(a)  Location.  Transfer of cargo shall occur only at designated staging zones.  

In special situations, the location may be extended by the Harbormaster. 
(b) Notification.  Cargo carriers shall notify the Harbormaster prior to 

entering the small boat harbor.  All hazardous materials shall be clearly 
marked and labeled in accordance with state and federal regulations. 

(c) Cargo Transfer Duration. The time for cargo transfer in the Staging Zone 
shall be limited to the actual transferring of/or loading of cargo.  

(d) Liability and Indemnity. All risk of loss from theft, fire, or other casualty 
to cargo shall be assumed by the party owning the cargo and the cargo 
carrier, and not by the City of Gustavus.  The cargo carrier loading, 



 
   

18 

transporting and unloading cargo shall defend, indemnify, and hold the 
City of Gustavus harmless from all claims arising from cargo transfer. 

(e) Cargo Area Cleanup. Cargo carriers shall keep the Staging Zone clean 
and free of trash, pallets, packaging material, dunnage, or operational 
equipment associated with cargo service. 

 
8.07.03 Long-term Storage Zone. 
 
(a) Availability.    A person(s) may apply to lease an area of the long-term 

storage zone by contacting the Harbormaster or City Clerk. 
(b) Any item(s) stored outside the designated storage area will be considered 

a public nuisance and subject to the provisions of Chapter 8.08. 
(c) Vessels and boat trailers.   Boat trailers may be stored in the designated 

storage zone. Untrailered vessels may be stored in the storage zone, but 
shall be blocked and supported by means and in a manner that does not 
create a hazard to persons or property and does not impede relocation if 
required by the Harbormaster.   

(d) Markings.  Items placed in the storage zone, including goods on pallets, 
shall be clearly marked with the name, mailing address and telephone 
number of the owner or other responsible person. 

(e) Liability and Indemnity.  The user of storage space in the storage zone 
assumes all risk of loss from theft, fire, or other casualty.  Storage areas 
may not be guarded or enclosed.  The user shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold the City of Gustavus harmless from any and all claims arising from 
such use of the storage zone.  

 
8.07.04 Launching Zone.  The launching of vessels or loading or haul-out 
of cargo, lumber and logs shall be restricted to the gravel or concrete launch 
ramps, ramp-barge ramp, or barge ramps.  Vessels shall be continuously 
engaged in launching or haul-out and shall not be left unattended while in the 
launching area.  
 
8.07.05 Vehicle/Trailer Parking Zone.  The Vehicle/Trailer Parking 
Zone(s) and time limits for use shall be set forth in resolution by the 
Gustavus City Council. 
 
8.07.06 Residential Use.  No portion of the small boat harbor shall be 
used for camping or residential purposes. 
 
8.07.07 Historical wooden floats.  Any float or walkway constructed 
before 2007 may be used by vessel owners and shall be maintained in a safe 
and responsible manner. until such time as said float or walkway deteriorates 
or is damaged. Such condition shall be considered to render the f Floats that 
constitute a safety hazard, as determined by the Harbormaster, , and said 
float or walkway shall be repaired or dismantled and disposed of at the 
owner(s) /users expense.   
 
8.07.08 New Construction. There shall be no new construction of wooden 
or steel floats or walkways, piers, docks or structures on the submerged lands 



 
   

19 

or uplands (State of Alaska Cooperative Resource Management Agreement ADL 
107456) in the small boat harbor, unless authorized by the City Council. 
 
8.07.09 Underway Requirements.   
On at least two days in each calendar year, separated by at least sixty (60) 
days, a vessel moored in the small boat harbor shall depart under its own 
power from the small boat harbor and travel beyond the navigation buoy at the 
mouth of the Salmon River before returning under its own power. The 
Harbormaster may require that this navigation be accomplished at a time when 
the Harbormaster is available to view it.  
 
8.07.10 Accident Report.  Any person utilizing the small boat harbor who 
is involved in an accident resulting in a serious injury or death of any person, 
or damage to property, excluding personal property, in excess of two 
hundred fifty ($250.00) five hundred dollars ($500.00), shall, in addition to 
any other notices required by law, immediately give oral notice of the accident 
to the Harbormaster.  In addition, the aforementioned person shall, within 
twenty-four (24) hours after the accident, file a written report with the 
Harbormaster. 
 
8.07.11 Duties of Vessel Owners/Operators.  In addition to the duties of 
registration and identification, every vessel owner or vessel operator using the 
facilities of the small boat harbor shall keep the vessel securely moored with 
lines, fenders and chafing gear of sufficient size, condition and number; 
sufficiently pumped out at all times to keep the vessel afloat; and to otherwise 
attend the needs of the vessel to avoid need for attention by the Harbormaster. 
 
 

Chapter 8.08 
Control of Nuisance and Derelict Vessel and/or Property, 

Impoundment Procedure, and Hearing Procedure  
 

Section: 
8.08.01  Nuisances Declared 
8.08.02  Abatement of Nuisances 
8.08.03  Vessel and/or Property That May Be Impounded 
8.08.04  Notice of Intent to Impound 
8.08.05  Hearing 
8.08.05  Decision 
8.08.07  Impoundment 
8.08.08  Notice of Sale  
8.08.09  Sale 
 
8.08.01 Nuisances declared.  
 
(a) Derelicts. For the purposes of this title and to protect the public health, 

safety and welfare, and in the interest of assuring the safe and full use of 
the harbor facilities by the general public, the City may declare any 
vessel in the harbor facilities to be a public nuisance if that vessel 
displays any one or more of the following conditions: The vessel  



 
   

20 

 (1) is or appears to be derelict, unfit or unseaworthy, abandoned or; 
 (2) is or appears to be maintained in such condition or in such 

manner as to render it subject to sinking or; 
(3) has or appears to have insufficient motor or sail power to permit 

the vessel to be maneuvered and controlled safely in and out of 
the harbor facilities under wind and water conditions that are not 
unusual and do not constitute a hazard to vessels or; 

(4) has been refused moorage privileges by the Harbormaster or; 
(5) is maintained in such condition or in such manner as to 

constitute a fire, health, safety, or navigation hazard or; 
(6) is sunken or in imminent danger of sinking;  

 
(b) Obstructions. Any vessel or object that stops, obstructs, interferes with,  

endangers, or impedes navigation, moored boats, harbor facilities traffic, 
that otherwise interferes with the normal public use of the harbor 
facilities, or that has been left unattended on any waterway in or about 
the harbor facilities in such manner as to stop, obstruct, interfere with, 
endanger, or impede harbor facilities traffic, or that otherwise interferes 
with the normal public use of the harbor facilities, is hereby declared to 
be a public nuisance and subject to abatement and removal from the 
harbor facilities by the Harbormaster without liability to the City for any 
damage done by virtue of the removal or for any consequences of such 
action by the City, including loss of use or profits or other consequential, 
direct, or  indirect damages. For purposes of this chapter, “obstruction” 
includes logs, log rafts, piling, building material, scows, barges, and any 
other matter, article or structure found located in, or being towed or 
adrift in or about the harbor facilities.  

 
(c) Other nuisances. For the purposes of this title and to protect the public 

health, safety and welfare, and in the interest of assuring the safe and 
full use of the harbor facilities by the general public, the City may declare 
the following to be a public nuisance: 
(1) refuse of any kind, structures or; 
(2) pieces of any structure, dock sweepings or;  
(3) dead animals or parts thereof or;  
(4) timber, logs, log rafts, lumber, boxes, paint, empty containers or; 
(5) nets, gear, cargo, merchandise, supplies or other items left on any 

float, ramp, decline, walk, or other public place at the harbor 
facilities for a period of longer than forty-eight (48) hours.  

(d) Personal conduct. The vessel owner or vessel operator shall be 
responsible for the conduct of those using or visiting the vessel. Behavior 
of the owner, operator or occupants of a vessel that disturbs or creates a 
nuisance for others in the harbor facilities is prohibited. Examples of 
conduct that constitutes a public nuisance and are therefore prohibited 
include but are not limited to:  
(1)  making, causing or allowing unreasonable noise so as to cause 

public inconvenience, annoyance or harm. Unreasonable noise 
means any excessive or unusually loud sound that disturbs the 
peace, comfort, or repose of a reasonable person of normal 
sensitivity;  



 
   

21 

(2)  causing, provoking or engaging in any fight, or to commit an act in 
a violent or reckless manner whereby the safety, life, or health of 
another is placed in immediate jeopardy;  

(3)  operating a vessel or being found under the influence of alcoholic 
beverages or a controlled substance(s) in such a condition as to be 
unable to exercise care for their own safety or the safety of others.  

 
8.08.02  Abatement of Nuisances.   
 
(a) Any vessel, object or obstruction declared a public nuisance under 

section 8.08.01 is subject to impoundment, removal, and disposal 
pursuant to sections 8.08.04 through 8.08.09. 

(b) Property of any sort found upon a float, dock, ramp, or approach may be 
impounded by the Harbormaster.  Impounded items will be released 
upon proof of ownership and payment of any impounding or storage fees 
established in this title. Such disposition by the Harbormaster shall be 
without liability to the City for any damage done by virtue of the removal 
or for any consequences of such action by the City, including for loss of 
use or profits, or other consequential, direct or indirect, damages. 

(c) Moorage for vessels declared to be public nuisances under section 
8.08.01 shall be subject to termination at the discretion of the 
Harbormaster and, if not removed from the harbor facilities in 
accordance with the Harbormaster’s notice of termination of moorage, 
the vessel may be impounded, removed, and disposed of pursuant to 
sections 8.08.04 through 8.08.09. 

(d) Any person causing or permitting public nuisances to be placed as 
aforesaid shall remove the same, and upon failure to do so, the same 
may be removed or caused to be removed by the Harbormaster. When 
the Harbormaster has authorized such nuisances to be removed or 
stored commercially, all costs of such removal or storage shall be paid by 
and are recoverable from the person creating or allowing such public 
nuisance. The abatement of any such public nuisances shall not excuse 
the person responsible from prosecution hereunder.    

(e) The Harbormaster shall give written notice of the impoundment to the 
owner of the property if the owner is known, and shall maintain a list in 
the Harbormaster’s office of all property impounded and the date of 
impoundment.  Property that is not claimed within sixty (60) days shall 
be forfeited to the City and may be sold pursuant to procedures 
regulating the disposition of other City property.  

 
8.08.03 Vessels and/or Property That May Be Impounded.   
 
The Harbormaster is authorized to impound a vessel and/or property under any 
of the following circumstances: 
 
(a) The vessel or property is within the harbor facilities and has been 

declared to be a public nuisance under this title; 
(b) The vessel or property is located at the harbor facilities and is in violation 

of this title; 



 
   

22 

(c)   Any and all property including but not limited to engines, machinery, 
equipment, nets, line, skiffs, gear, buoys, or all other personal property 
that the City has determined to be or appears to be abandoned at any of 
the harbor facilities. 

 
8.08.04 Notice of Intent to Impound 
 
(a) Notification.  Prior to impounding any vessel or property, the 

Harbormaster shall prepare a written Notice of the Intent to Impound the 
vessel or property.  The notice shall contain: 
(1) The name and/or official number or state registration number of 

the vessel; 
(2) The name and address, if known, of the owner, operator, master 

or managing agent; 
(3)      The location of the vessel or property; 
(4) The basis or reason for impoundment. 

  
(b) Distribution.  The notice of intent to impound shall be, at least fifteen 

(15) workdays before impoundment, 
(1) Mailed by USPS certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last 

known address of the last known owner, master, or managing 
agent of the vessel and/or property; 

(2) Posted on the vessel and/or property and in three public places, 
including the Gustavus City Hall and the Gustavus Public Library. 

 
8.08.05 Hearing 
 
(a) Demand for Hearing.  The vessel owner, the vessel operator, or any other 

person in lawful possession of a vessel or property proposed for 
impoundment has the right to a pre-impoundment hearing to determine 
if there is cause to impound the vessel or property.  Any such person 
desiring a hearing shall file a written demand with the City of Gustavus 
City Clerk within fifteen (15) workdays following the date the City mailed 
and posted the Notice of Intent to Impound. 

 
(b) Hearing Procedure.  The hearing shall be conducted within seventy-two 

(72) hours of receipt of a written demand from the person seeking the 
hearing, unless such person waives the right to a speedy hearing.  
Saturdays, Sundays, and City of Gustavus holidays shall not be included 
in the calculation of the seventy-two (72) hour period.  The hearing shall 
be conducted by the Harbor Appeal Panel.  The sole issue before the 
Panel shall be if there is probable cause to impound the vessel or 
property in question.  “Probable cause to impound” shall mean such a 
state of facts as would lead a person of ordinary care and prudence to 
believe there was a breach of federal, state, or municipal law or 
regulations, or any agreement entered into pursuant thereto, rendering 
the vessel or property subject to impoundment.  The Panel shall conduct 
the hearing in an informal manner and shall not be bound by technical 
rules of evidence.  The person demanding the hearing shall carry the 
burden of establishing that such person has the right to possession of 



 
   

23 

the vessel or property.  The Harbormaster shall carry the burden of 
establishing probable cause to impound the vessel or property in 
question.   

 
8.08.06 Decision 
 
The Panel shall only determine that as to the vessel and/or property in question 
either that there is probable cause to impound the vessel and/or property or 
that there is no such probable cause.  In the event that the Panel determines 
that there is no probable cause, the Panel shall prepare and date a Certificate of 
No Probable Cause, copies of which shall be provided to the owner or operator 
and to the Harbormaster.  Upon receipt of a Certificate of Probable Cause, the 
Harbormaster may proceed with impoundment and disposition of the vessel 
and/or property by removal, sale, disposal, or destruction as authorized by this 
title. 
 
At the conclusion of the hearing, the Panel shall prepare a written decision.  A 
copy of the decision shall be provided to the person demanding the hearing and 
the owner of the vessel and/or property if the owner is not the person 
requesting the hearing. The Panel’s decision in no way affects any criminal 
proceeding in connection with the impound in question, and any criminal 
charges involved in such proceeding may only be challenged in the appropriate 
court.  The decision of the Panel is final and may only be appealed to the 
Superior Court.  Failure of the owner or operator to request or attend a 
scheduled pre-impoundment hearing shall be deemed a waiver of the right of 
such hearing. 
 
8.08.07 Impoundment.   
 
(a) In the event the Panel determines there is cause to impound the vessel 

and/or property, the Harbormaster may proceed immediately with 
impoundment.  The Harbormaster may impound the vessel and/or 
property by immobilizing it, removing it, or having it removed from the 
water or land, and placing it in public or commercial storage, with all 
expenses of haul out and storage and an impound fee to be borne by the 
owner of the vessel and/or property.  At any time, prior to the sale, 
disposal, or destruction of the vessel and/or property, the owner, 
operator, master or managing agent, or person in lawful possession of 
the vessel and/or property may redeem the vessel and/or property by a 
cash payment of all fees, including interest and costs. 

(b) The Notice of Public Nuisance in the Gustavus Harbor Facilities form 
shall be adopted by resolution of the Gustavus City Council. 

 
8.08.08 Notice of Sale 
 
(a) Notification.  Prior to the sale of any impounded vessel or property, the 

Harbormaster shall prepare a written notice of sale of the vessel or 
property.  The notice shall contain: 
(1) the name and/or official number or state registration number of 

the vessel and/or property; 



 
   

24 

(2) the date, time and place of the sale;  
(3) the fees, interest, and costs due against the vessel and/or 

property; 
(4) the bidding terms provided by Section 8.08.09 of this title. 

 
(b) Distribution.  The notice of sale shall be, at least thirty (30) workdays 

before sale: 
(1) Mailed by USPS certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last 

known address of the last known owner, master, or managing 
agent of the vessel and/or property. 

(2) Posted on the vessel and/or property, and in three public places, 
including the Gustavus City Hall and Gustavus Public Library. 

(3) Published in a newspaper of general circulation in Gustavus, 
Alaska, if such a publication exists, and/or the Juneau Empire, at 
least once. 

 
Section 8.08.09 Sale 
 
The City may offer an impounded vessel and/or property for sale at public 
auction or by sealed competitive bid.  Continued moorage of an impounded 
vessel at the City harbor facilities shall be at the discretion of the Harbormaster.  
If the City intends to refuse further moorage of the vessel, the notice of sale 
shall so state, and the sale shall be conditioned upon the purchaser making 
satisfactory arrangements to remove the vessel from the harbor facilities, and 
providing the City with security acceptable to the Harbormaster for the vessel’s 
proper and timely removal.  Upon sale being made, the City of Gustavus shall 
make and deliver its bill of sale, without warranty, conveying the vessel and/or 
property to the successful buyer. The proceeds of such sale shall be first 
applied to the cost of the sale, then to interest, then to fees accrued, and the 
balance, if any, shall be held in trust by the City of Gustavus for the owner of 
the vessel and/or property to claim.  If such balance is not claimed within six 
(6) months, the balance shall be forfeited to the City of Gustavus.  
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption 
by the Gustavus City Council. 
 
Date Introduced:  May 9, 2013 
Date of Public Hearing: June 13, 2013 
Date of 2nd Public Hearing: July 11, 2013 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this ____ day of  
__________, 2013. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Lou Cacioppo, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: __________________________,  
Paul Berry, Interim Clerk 



 
City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance No. FY13-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE  

AMENDMENT OF CITY ORDINANCE 4.01.010 CITY OBLIGATIONS 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of general and permanent nature 
and shall become a part of the City of Gustavus Municipal Code. 

Section 2.     Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or any application 
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the 
remainder of this ordinance and its application to other persons, 
or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Enactment. Now therefore, it is enacted by the Gustavus City 
Council that Title 4, Section 4.01.010 be amended as follows: 
Bold and underlined items are additions, and strikethroughs are 
deletions. 

 
 
 
Section 4.01.010  City Obligations 
 
a. A bond, contract, lease, or other obligation requiring the payment of 
funds from the appropriations of a later fiscal year of more than one (1) fiscal 
year shall be made by ordinance and approved by the voters. A contract or 
lease may be renewed for up to a maximum of two annual contract 
extensions after completion of the initial specified performance period, as 
approved by the City Council by motion. 
 
b. A bond, or other obligation, requiring the payment of funds from the 
appropriations of a later fiscal year shall be made by ordinance and 
approved by the voters. 
 
b.c. No payment may be authorized or made and no obligations may be 
incurred except in accordance wit an appropriation made by ordinance. The 
City Council may make supplemental and emergency appropriations. 
 
c.d. The City Council may authorize contracts for capital improvements to be 
financed wholly or partly by the issuance of bonds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Section 4.   Effective Date. This ordinance become effective upon its adoption by 
the Gustavus City Council 
 
Date Introduced:  June 13, 2013 
Date of Public Hearing: July 11, 2013 
 
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of 
___________________, 2013. 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Lou Cacioppo 
Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Attest: Paul Berry 
Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Resolution 2013-18 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1 

 
 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 2013-18 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUSTAVUS HARBOR  

FACILITIES’ OFFENSES FINES 
 

WHEREAS, the Gustavus City Council adopted Title 8, Marine Facilities 
ordinance on July 13, 2006, that included a schedule of fines; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Gustavus City Council adopted a major revision of Title 8, 
Marine Facilities ordinance on July 11, 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the municipal attorney for the City of Gustavus recommended 
that fines for harbor facilities’ offenses be set in resolution instead of 
ordinance; and, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: the City of Gustavus adopts a 
resolution establishing Gustavus Harbor Facilities’ Offenses Fines as listed. 

 
Gustavus Harbor Facilities Offenses Numerical Listing 

 
Provision    Offense    Fine 

8.05.01(a) Improper Vessel Operation    $300.00 
8.05.01(b) Hazard to Navigation    $75.00 
8.05.01(c)  Improper Mooring     $75.00 
8.05.01(d) Improper Use of the Harbor Facilities  $75.00 
8.05.01(e)  Improper Dressing and Processing of Fish $50.00 
8.05.01(f)  Improper Waste Disposal    $75.00  
8.05.01(g)  Improper Dumping or  

Discarding of Property    $100.00 
8.05.01(h) Unattended Cargo or Freight   $75.00 
8.05.01(i)  Control of Animals     $50.00 
8.05.01(j)  Posting Written or Printed Matter   $50.00 
8.05.01(k) Improper Petroleum Product Disposal  $75.00 
8.05.01(l)  Miscellaneous offenses not otherwise  
   addressed in this fine schedule   $50.00 

 
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council, this _____ day of 
____________, 2013. 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Lou Cacioppo. Mayor   Noel Farevaag, Vice Mayor 

 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Jim Mackovjak, Council Member  Tim Sunday, Council Member 



City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Resolution 2013-18 

Page 2 of 2 
 

2 

 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Sandi Marchbanks, Council Member Phil Hawley, Council Member 

 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Morgan DeBoer, Council Member  Attest: Paul Berry, Interim City Clerk 

 
    

 
 


	2013-7-11 General Meeting Agenda
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

	General meeting

	July 11, 2013 - Thursday

	7:00PM @ City Hall


	2013-6-13 City Council General Meeting
	2013-6-14 City Council Special Meeting Minutes
	FY14-01NCO DRC Budget amendment 1
	DRC July 2013 Staff Request for Agenda Item - Amending DRC Budget for Office completion
	FY14-02NCO Library Amendment 1
	July 11 2013 Meeting - Request for Agenda ItemGCN
	Title 8 Final 7-11-13sm
	Chapter 8.05
	UProhibited Acts
	Chapter 8.08
	UControl of Nuisance and Derelict Vessel and/or Property,
	UImpoundment Procedure, and Hearing Procedure
	Section:
	8.08.03  Vessel and/or Property That May Be Impounded
	8.08.05  Hearing
	8.08.08  Notice of Sale

	Ordinance Amending Title 4.01.010 City Obligations
	ResolutionEstablishingHarborFacilitiesOffensesFines.6.13.13sm


<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



